

Course Companion for GCSE AQA A Component 2

Relationships and Families

Full Course and Short Course: Theme A

zigzageducation.co.uk

POD 6842

Publish your own work... Write to a brief... Register at **publishmenow.co.uk**

Contents

Гhank You for Choosing ZigZag Education	
Teacher Feedback Opportunity	iii
Terms and Conditions of Use	iv
Teacher's Introduction	1
Introduction to the Course and How to Answer Exam Questions	2
Sex, Marriage and Divorce	3
Human Sexuality including Heterosexual and Homosexual Relationships	3
Sexual Relationships before and outside of Marriage	7
Contraception and Family Planning	10
The Nature and Purpose of Marriage	14
Same-sex Marriage and Cohabitation	16
Divorce	19
Ethical Arguments Related to Divorce	22
Summary for Sex, Marriage and Divorce	23
Families and Gender Equality	24
The Nature of Families	
The Purpose of Families	26
Contemporary Family Issues	28
The Roles of Men and Women	30
Gender Equality	32
Gender Prejudice and Discrimination	34
Summary for Families and Gender Equality	36
Answers	37
Sex, Marriage and Divorce	37
Families and Gender Equality	40

Teacher's Introduction

This resource has been designed to support the learning and teaching of AQA A GCSE Religious Studies Component 2: Thematic Studies, Theme A: Relationships and Families. All areas of the specification are covered, and questions and activities are included to test knowledge and ability, and to help students to engage with the topics.

Remember!

Always check the exam board website for new information, including changes to the specification and sample assessment material.

The information is comprehensive, and images help to illustrate concepts. Key words and Bible and Qur'an quotes are included to help students to understand the material and to further their grasp of the subjects. A brief introduction to the course and answering exam questions is provided for students at the start, and answers / a mark scheme are included at the end.

This course companion can be used in full as an alternative or complement to a textbook, as a class text or for independent learning or revision. Alternatively, teachers might use a section for a specific classroom activity or homework.

This topic involves studying a number of different arguments, ideas and opinions, from different religious and non-religious perspectives. This should both inform students and develop their thinking, enabling them to approach issues from different points of view.

This resource focuses primarily on Christianity in line with the specification's focus on Christianity as the main religious tradition in Britain today. Where students need to know contrasting religious views on specific topics, examples are provided from Islam, which we expect to be a common choice, along with other religious and non-religious views where appropriate.

We have sought a balance between explaining relevant concepts in sufficient detail without oversimplification, while not going beyond GCSE level and becoming too complicated. Throughout we have tried to present all views in a neutral and informative way.

Note: this theme covers several sensitive and potentially controversial issues such as homosexuality and divorce. It is advised that teachers review these sections before sharing them with their classes, and warn students about any content which may distress or offend.

Hopefully, this resource will encourage students in their learning and help to prepare them for their exams. It should take the pressure away from teachers by providing the bulk of the content which they want to teach to their class.



Introduction to the Course and How to Answ

This course aims to cover religious and non-religious beliefs, teachings and ar relationships; families; and gender equality – and to assess your understanding in the world today. The course companion focuses on Christianity in particular focus on Christianity as the main religious tradition in Britain today, as well as religions in certain sections. Quick questions also focus on Christianity, but ple specific religion will be referred to (except in 4-mark questions) and you may have studied.

This course companion is designed to equip you with the information you neeknowledge and ability to answer related questions. Not all the questions and exam-style, but those which are should be answered in cular ways.

The exam board will give you multiple-chcing and ask you to give brief examples, as well as asking and explain and 'evaluate' beliefs and opinions. When we is all questions it is important to try to use technical to the possible, and to write well using a style that is easy to and use correct spelling and grammar. More or less writing are required, depending on the number of marks. Try to spend as little time as possible on the shorter questions, to allow yourself more time for longer ones.

For this theme you will get a 1-mark, 2-mark, 4-mark, 5-mark and 12-mark question in the exam – a few extra marks are given for spelling, punctuation and grammar based on the 12-mark question.

Hopefully, this resource will be interesting, informative, and help you to achieve good results.

For the **1-mark question**, you will be given a multiple-choice question and you need to choose the right answer. Make sure not to fall for trick questions!

For the **2-mark question** you need to give two examples confacts. You do not need to elaborate on these, and do not we time giving extra examples, as you can only get two marks.

For the **4-mark question**, you will be asked to 'explain'. You need to go and to get full marks you must develop or justify both. So you can this a mark per point and a mark for developing each point. This should should extend information as well as being able to recall it. The question contrasting beliefs – in this case make sure the period beliefs you use are not just the same argument given by the great religions. You must Christianity as one of the choose well.

The **5-mark question** and similar to the 4-mark question, but the beliefs contracting a many refer to any religious beliefs, which do not need we has making two points and developing/justifying both, you show e of scripture / religious writing (as well as your development/justimake sure your points are as different as possible so that the person marking every point/development you make.

The **12-mark question** is the longest, and there is a little more to remember. You will This means giving arguments and justifications **for** and **against** the statement (so agrean alternative point of view). Make sure you have good reasons for all the points you To get top marks you need to come to a conclusion; picking the most convincing side arguments you have given!) and saying why you think this is the case. You need to refyou have a lot of different religious arguments, it is a good idea to refer to non-religious

ΑÑ

ГŸ



Sex, Marriage and Divorc

Many Christians look to their religion to provide them with **moral** guidance teachings regarding **marriage** and sexual relationships in Christianity. Mass **contraception** and **divorce** are controversial within the religion.

Keywords:

- morality ideas about what is right and wrong
- marriage a legal joining of two people. In Christianity, this is normally a ris seen as spiritual as well.
- homosexuality a sexual orientation where people attracted to people
- ◆ **contraception** methods which aim to stor to be becoming pregnant sexually transmitted infections
- divorce the legal ending fan rige



anty including Heterosexual and Homosex

Keywords:

- sexuality sexual feelings and the ability and desire to have sexual relation
- **sexual orientation** which sex/gender someone is attracted to
- ♦ homosexuality a sexual orientation where people are attracted to people
- monogamous only having one sexual partner, and being faithful to them
- marriage a legal joining of two people. In Christianity, this is normally a ris seen as spiritual as well.
- **prayer** communication with God
- ◆ sin an act against God's will
- celibacy refraining from sexual activity
- ♦ immorality acting wrongly
- procreation making/having children
- nuclear family where two parents live with their biological or adopted chill
- morality ideas about what is right and wrong
- atheist someone who does not believe in a God or gods
- humanist someone who aims to live a good life, without belief in religior
- zina in Islam, unlawful sexual activity
- Qur'an the Muslim holy book, which the majority of Muslims believe to be revealed through the Prophet Muhammad
- hadith collected sayings of the Prophet Muhammad
- shari'ah Islamic law derived from the Qur'an and the hadith

Sexuality

Sexuality refers to humans' sexual desired and their ability and desire to someone's sexuality is the country their sexual orientation: whether they people of the sex/gender), homosexual (attracted to people of bisexual (attracted to people of both sexes/genders). Sexuality also involves sexual identity, such as if they identify as cisgender (the gender they were opposite gender to which they were born).



Heterosexual Relationships

Christians approve of **monogamous** heterosexual relationships: relationships woman. This is because they believe such relationships were instituted by and because Jesus emphasised the importance of heterosexual **marriages**

'And the rib that the LORD God had taken from the man he made into a woman man. Then the man said, "This at last is bone of my bones and flesh of my flesh; Woman, for out of Man this one was taken." Therefore a man leaves his father clings to his wife, and they become one flesh. And the man and his wife were bot ashamed.' (Genesis 2:22-25 NRSV)

'... the one who made them at the beginning im decision male and female", and man shall leave his father and more in the point of the point one flesh.' (Matthew 19:4-6 NRS)

More about is considered acceptable within a heterosexual Christian sections below.

Some Christians believe that it is better to refrain from all relationships – o Paul, believed that it was better to be **celibate** and unmarried, to remain n Christians have agreed with this, and remain unmarried to commit their livioin religious orders and become monks or nuns, and in the Catholic Churunmarried and celibate, as they are seen to be married to God.

'... he who marries his fiancée does well; and he who refrains from marriage (1 Corinthians 7:38 NRSV)

Homosexual Relationships

Important! You need to be able to contrast beliefs about homosexual relationshand at least one more religious tradition.

Christianity

There are various different attitudes to **homosexuality** and homosexual relationships within Christianity.

Some Christians, such as Evangelical Christians is that homosexuality wrong in itself, and that if people **practically** will help them to stop homosexual feelings. This is because watching against homosexuality in the stop hom



Il not lie with a male as with a woman; it is an abomination.'
(Leviticus 18:22 NRSV)

'We must not indulge in sexual immorality...' (1 Corinthians 10:8 NRSV)

Some other Christians believe that homosexual activity is a **sin**, but that he sinful if people control them and do not act on them, because their feeling believe people should not have homosexual relationships, or possibly that homosexual relationships.



This is taught by the Catholic Church, and also believed by some conserval Christians. They believe homosexual activity is sinful because it is prohibite example, in Leviticus – and sexual **immorality** is prohibited in some New Interpret these references to include homosexual sex.

The Catholic Church is also against homosexual sex because its position is be open to the possibility of **procreation**, and this is not possible with hor feel that homosexual couples undermine the role of the *traditional* (heterofoundation for society.

'... Basing itself on Sacred Scripture, which presents of osexual acts as acts tradition has always declared that "homosexual act a pentrinsically disordered the natural law. They close the some of two the gift of life.' (Catholic Cates)

However, some Christians as more liberal Protestants, are not oppose relationship to be asson for this is that they may feel that the commands the Old Testant do not need to be followed any more because Christians the Jewish law. For example, Christians do not keep many Jewish dietary rewhich Jews maintain for purity or cleanliness, as Christians feel that they have Jesus' death – they may see commandments against homosexuality as relating the protestants.

Some Christians also feel that love is more important than following rules, relationships harm no one, so should not be stopped.

Furthermore, there is no record of Jesus condemning homosexuality, and judge others, and did not always condemn those who had committed sins woman in John 8. Some Christians may feel that homosexuality is sinful, b. God, so it is unfair to treat homosexuals badly when no one is perfect.

'Or how can you say to your neighbour, "Let me take the speck out of your ey your own eye?' (Matthew 7:4 NRSV) [Jesus on not judging others, when you a

'Let anyone among you who is without sin be the first to throw a stone...' (John that they can condemn an adulterous woman if they themselv

Christians who accept homosexuality and homosexual relationships may homosexuality and atheists, while Christians who do not accept homosexuality are likely to claim that, while allowing homosexuality may seem fair, it is not if that does not make sense to hemosexuality should still be followed.

Islam

Islam disa is in the will of it is compulsory to punish homosexual activity, a form of within Islam. Some Muslim countries, which observe **shari'ah** law (Islamic and the **hadith** (sayings and actions of the Prophet Muhammad)), carry ou homosexual activity.

'Of all the creatures in the world, will ye approach males, And leave those who you to be your mates? Nay, ye are a people transgressing (all limits)!' (Qu



It is primarily male homosexual activity which is forbidden in Islamic teaching disapprove of male homosexual activity will also disapprove of female homosexua

While homosexual relationships are condemned within Islam, homosexual is not forbidden or punishable – Muslim homosexuals are expected to refr

However, some modern Muslims do accept homosexual relationships, and Muslims and those who want Islam to be more accepting of homosexuality non-Muslim countries are likely to be more accepting of homosexual relationships.

Judaism

Within Judaism, as with Christianity the prohibitions against **homose**Technically, homosexual activity is primable by the death penalty, thoughthis in practice.

Orthodox Jews not view homosexuality itself as sinful, and some Orthodox Jews do not view homosexuality itself as sinful, and some Orthodox homosexual relationships which do not involve anal sex and/or sexual activations.

Reform Judaism, a more liberal branch of Judaism, is generally much more and homosexual relationships. Some Reform Jews feel that prohibitions of apply, or feel that commandments against homosexuality refer to homose not to loving homosexual relationships.

Non-religious

Some non-religious people also discriminate against **homosexual** people wrong. However, many **humanists** and **atheists** do not have a problem wit is not seen as a sin against God, then they see no reason to treat homose to heterosexual ones.

Impact and Influence

For many years, **homosexuality** was illegal in the UK, and still is in some parts of the world, partly due to religious views. However, more liberal religious and non-religious views have become more popular, and have been reflected in the law of many countries. There is now a much more open debate about sexuality, and it is a pocially acceptable to be homosexual or transpendent.

Quick Questions

- 1) Which pages 5 **not** a sexual orientation?
 - a) Homosexuality
- b) Bisexuality
- c) Tensexuality
- 2) Give two reasons why Christians approve of heterosexual relationship

Now Try This...

 Explain two contrasting religious beliefs on homosexual relationships, Christianity and another religion.

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED



S r

r®

t

Sexual Relationships before and outside of Marriage

Sexual relationships within **marriage** for Christians will be covered later. High different views on sexual relationships *before* and *outside of* marriage.

Keywords:

- premarital sex sex before being married
- extramarital sex / adultery sex where at least one of the participants is the person they are having sex with
- open marriage a marriage where the partners agree they can have sex w
- sacrament a particularly important worship practice which has even high such as the Catholic and Orthodox churches
- ♦ denomination a particular branch v ຳ ຶກ ຶ r ູກ່ຽງເດັກ, e.g. Catholicism, Ang

Sexual Relationship elere Marriage

Important peed to be able to contrast beliefs about sexual relationships be Christianity and at least one more religious tradition

Christianity

Many Christians believe that sexual relationships should take place only will teaching of the Catholic Church, and a more conservative Christian view. The marriage is the time when men and women can be joined sexually, and teaching in the time when men and women can be joined sexually, and teaching the marriage is the time when men and women can be joined sexually, and teaching the marriage is the time when men and women can be joined sexually, and teaching the marriage is the time when men and women can be joined sexually.

'...the one who made them at the beginning "made them male and female" reason a man shall leave his father and mother and be joined to his wife, and one flesh"? So they are no longer two, but one flesh.' (Matthew 19:

'We must not indulge in sexual immorality...' (1 Corinthians

'Fornication is carnal union between an unmarried man and an unmarried we the dignity of persons and of human sexuality which is naturally ordered to generation and education of children.' (Catholic Catechia

However, some other Christians have a more relaxed view to premarital sex, especially if it is within a committed relationship. Church of England accepts long-term, committed (heterose in couples having sexual relationships if this is a ster in value marriage, because they see love as the most important double important for Christians to love and accept of the relationships.

'You shall love your neighbour as yourself.' (Matthew 22:39 NRSV)



Some more liberal Protestants do not see a problem with more casual sext marriage (as long as they are consensual), e.g. one-night stands, or sex earlied not teach about sexual relationships, other than when talking about more consensual life is not of particular concern to God, or relong as they are not hurting anyone.



Islam

Islam prohibits sex before marriage – like homosexual activity, consensual sex (**zina**). Premarital sex can be punished by law in some Muslim countries as bad as adultery.

Many Muslims believe that sex should only take place within marriage becomes a special bond between the married couple (this is very similar to translate that children should be born within marriage, so premarital sembeing born outside of a stable and loving relationship.

Some more liberal Muslims will engage in premarital solubut even in liberal as much more severe than within liberal branches on hinstianity.

Judaism

Orthodox Judaism like have aditional/conservative branches of Christian marriage. Controdox Jews may also avoid any amorous physical kissing, emerged or holding hands.

'Therefore a man leaves his father and his mother and clings to his wife, one flesh.' (Genesis 2:24 NRSV) This quote is often taken to imply that see only occur within marriage.

Reform Judaism is much more lenient – **cohabitation** and sex before marraccepted within Reform Judaism.

Non-religious

Humanists and atheists are likely not to have a problem with premarital Some will feel that sex should only take place in committed relationships, personal decision and if someone wants to have multiple sexual partners,

Sexual Relationships outside of Marriage

Most Christians disapprove of **adultery**, also called **extramarital sex**, which married has sex with someone who is not their spouse (husband or wife). Commandments – important rules in the Old Testament which many Christians generally seen to be the opposite of being loving. Most people would not them, so Christians feel it is wrong to do something bey would not want or Rule).

abmmit adultery.' (Exodus 20:14 NRSV) [from the Ten C

In everyning do to others as you would have them do to you; for this is the (Matthew 7:12 NRSV) [The Golden Rule]

Humanists are likely to disapprove of adultery in the sense that they are likely on your partner is wrong. However, humanists and **atheists** may be more couple has already split up and is going through the process of getting a cheating as the problem, rather than the breaking of marriage vows. Some



accept **open marriages**, where a couple is married, but the partners agree other people; because both partners agree on this, it may not be seen as c

However, many Christians will not see this as acceptable because they believelationship and married partners should only have sex with each other. Cois a **sacrament**, which means that marriage vows are sacred and holy, and as it is a sin to break what is holy.

Impact and Influence

Christian views on sexual relationships before and outside of marriage do not play a part in the law of the UV marriage premarital sex and adultery are both locally between there is disapproval of adultery within search and there is still some social stigma around provided and sex in conservative communities.

Do to sex ma

Quick Quans

- 4) Give two reasons why Christians may disapprove of sex outside of ma
- 5) Which of these types of sexual relationships always involves cheating
 - a) Adultery
- b) Marriage
- c) One-night stand

Now Try This...

6) Explain two contrasting religious beliefs about sexual relationships be referring to Christianity and another religion.





Contraception and Family Planning

Different Christians have different attitudes to **contraception** and family p different types of contraception.

Keywords:

- contraception methods which aim to stop someone becoming pregnant sexually transmitted infections
- **procreation** making/having children
- encyclical an open letter from the Pope to Catholics, instructing them
- ◆ **Humanae Vitae** an encyclical about the importance of life and not using ®
- natural law rules about morality drawn from rain and reason
- ◆ emergency contraception contraception use the sex which may preven

Important! Year in (\cdot,\cdot) abre to contrast beliefs about contraception from Channe more than a sadition

Christianity

Some Christians, such as some Catholics, and evangelical or conservative C forms of artificial **contraception**, as they believe that God created sex for the God told humans to have children when he created them, according to the Church teaches that all sexual acts should be open to the possibility of new continued the Church's stance against artificial contraception in his **encycli**

'Be fruitful and multiply, and fill the earth...' (Genesis 1:28

"every action which, whether in anticipation of the conjugal act, or in its acc development of its natural consequences, proposes, whether as an end or procreation impossible" is intrinsically evil' (Catholic Catechism 2370, quo

The Catholic Church also disagrees with contraception because of **natural** law is that God has shown humans what is right through nature and reaso how to act. Because sex naturally carries the possibility of producing child contraception goes against nature, and disobeys natural law.

Protestant denominations, are not opposed to consequence of the emods but not others. They allow artificial contracentions and because there is nothing in the Bible which expressly forbid and plane size of their families without having to stop having sex.

Among other things, contraception:

- is likely to improve the health of women (especially in developing couconstantly have children;
- improves women's social position because they can have other roles that
- improves the health of children, because parents will be able to provid
- improves the quality of life for children and parents because people cannot be when they are able to look after them, provide for them, and when the



Further, in the modern world, many people believe that overpopulation capeople want to have fewer, or no, children, this means there is more to go Some forms of contraception such as condoms can also prevent the spream

One method of contraception which some Catholics accept is the **rhythm** couples try to have sex when they believe the woman is less fertile, lowering become pregnant. Because this still allows the possibility of procreation, it family better while allowing that they may conceive at any time, if God will approve of artificial contraception are much more likely to use artificial contraception, as it is more reliable.

One type of contraception which Christians who prove of artificial contraception is **barrier method** contraception. So the condoms. This type of contraceptable because it stops sports to be reaching an egg and prevents fertifit fails, it in no way it is a soing an embryo if conception does take place.

Some Christians approve of **sterilisation**, where someone has minor sable to conceive in the future. Christians may feel this is sensible if someowants no more children, and does not want to have to worry about contra object on the basis that Christians could feel called by God to have more come types of sterilisation can be reversed if necessary. The Catholic Chur for the same reasons it disapproves of artificial contraception, though it acmedical treatment for other reasons; for example, removing the uterus (wo

Many Christians are happy to use **hormonal methods** of contraception such as the contraceptive pill; hormonal methods involve using chemicals to convince the female body not to conceive, such as by stopping it releasing an egg. Some Christians, however, will not use such methods, or some such methods, if there is the small chance that if conception takes place, the hormones will also likely cause an early abortion – some Christians feel that this is murder, and murder is forbidden in the Ten Commandments (see below).



Some Christians will not use the **withdrawal method** of contraception, where from the woman's vagina before ejaculating semen (containing sperm), becauteaching against this in the Bible. In Genesis 38 a man called Onan uses the vercords that God was displeased and killed him. However, ome other Christis withdrawal method which displeased God but has children for his dead brother would probably not use the property of as a main method of contraception as it

While man tians agree with artificial contraception, most are opposed. This method of contraception is used after sex, and is designed to delay the preventing conception. Some people argue that certain types of emergency potential to change the condition of the uterus, which might mean that an elimplanted – so the embryo would be destroyed. Many Christians believe that when the sperm meets the egg and becomes an embryo. These people are contraception in case it does destroy an embryo, which should be treated as teaches not to murder people in the Ten Commandments. Some also believe souls from the moment of conception.



'You shall not murder' (Exodus 20:13 NRSV) [from the Ten Comm

Some Christians will allow emergency contraception as being the most lov circumstances; for example, if a woman was raped.

Christians who are against contraception might argue against those who a be no need for contraception to stop diseases or pregnancies in unstable sex with their lifelong **marriage** partner. However, this does not answer that all, even with their spouse, or those who want a reliable way of limiting have, and of choosing when to have them.

Islam

There is nothing in the necessary in the

Some stricts wiuslims may oppose the use of contraception because of enhave children. The Prophet Muhammad is also said to have encouraged **p** approved of within Islam.

'Your wives are as a tilth unto you; so approach your tilth when or how ye will... sometimes translated as 'sowing field' – this quote promotes men sowing their se

If Muslims disapprove of contraception, it is likely to be on the grounds the Muhammad have encouraged procreation, and some will also oppose met could cause an early miscarriage; many Muslims oppose abortion / the destroctus, as they oppose the destruction of life.

Some Muslims, such as Ahmadiyya Muslims, oppose contraception if it is to for children – they extend teaching against killing children, which is often a children) and abortion, to contraception – they believe that Muslims should any children he grants them, and that all children should be accepted as a

'Kill not your children for fear of want: We shall provide sustenance for them as willing of them is a great Qur'an 17:31)

Many Muslims approve of control of specially if it is to limit the numwoman's health. Allah of to be merciful, and some Muslims will fe contraceptions in the same of the preferred.

Further, the hadith (recorded sayings and actions of the Prophet Muhammwas aware of contraception and did not teach against it. One hadith suggesthat if Allah willed the birth of a child then this would happen – so contract 100% effective and pregnancy will result if Allah wills.



When contraception is used, Islam teaches that it should be used with the (Islam teaches that sex should take place within marriage), and that contra to husband or wife.

Judaism

Judaism, like Christianity, believes that having children is important, due to to **procreate** in Genesis. Orthodox Judaism, a stricter branch of Judaism, certain circumstances, such as if the couple are newly married (Judaism en to remain within marriage) and need to spend time together as a couple b couple already have children and do not want more. Orthodox Jews may religious leader) about using contraception.

Reform Judaism, a more liberal branc's daism, is more relaxed about @ contraception is a more personal larger for couples to decide for themsel

Non-relig d humanists have no problem with artificial contracepti Most ather believing that sex is at least partly for pleasure, and that there are good re of children people have and for being able to choose when is best to have given for allowing contraception above). They may have similar views to n other religions.

Some may have problems with hormonal methods of contraception which with **emergency contraception**, if they feel that one should not kill huma unborn. However, many will accept all forms of contraception.

Impact and Influence

Contraception is freely available in the UK, but people can choose which for depending on their personal beliefs.

Quick Questions

- 7) Which of these is a form of artificial contraception?
 - Rhythm method b) Condoms
- c) Humanae Vitae
- Give two reasons why Christians might choose to use contraception.

Now Try This...

9) Explain two religious belief and the





The Nature and Purpose of Marriage

The Bible contains teaching about **marriage**, and different church **denomi** about marriage, which may be due to different interpretations of the Bible of two people, which is also seen as a spiritual union in Christianity.

Keywords:

- marriage a legal joining of two people. In Christianity, this is normally a ris seen as spiritual as well.
- sacrament a particularly important worship practice which has even high such as the Catholic and Orthodox churches
- ♦ monogamous only having one sexual partage as being faithful to them
- procreation making/having children
- ♦ divorce the legal ending ி.ச. ாந்து

The Natural National

The nature rriage is what marriage is.

- For some Christians marriage is a sacrament, an important religious practice, which they believe conveys God's grace.
 This is taught by the Catholic Church, and some other branches of Christianity.
- All Christians believe that marriage is an important commitment, becato God and to another person about how someone will spend the rest
- Marriage within Christianity is monogamous; it is a commitment between stay faithful to each other.
- Christians believe that marriage is a gift from God.
- For many Christians, marriage is a union of two heterosexual people of how it is described in the Bible. For more liberal Christians, marriage between two people of any gender.

'But from the beginning of creation, "God made them male and female." "For this his father and mother and be joined to his wife, and the two shall become one flest two, but one flesh. Therefore what God has joined together, let no one separate.

Many **humanists** and **atheists** also get married and value marriage, and marriage important commitment.

The Purpose of Marriage

Different Christians may think that different purposes:

- A purpose of marrice partial strictions is **procreation** and raising a family being the partial strictions and thing if you want to have a family, to prother and think that once married you should have a family and should actively try to have children. This is based on Bible verses such tells humans to have children. This is taught by the Catholic Church, a Catholics and some more conservative Orthodox Christians or Protest.
- A purpose of marriage for Christians is to allow couples to express low and support each other through life. This makes marriage important love and friendship play a very large part in their lives.

Dis



- A purpose of marriage for many Christians is being able to have sex.
 relationships as important, and not something to be entered into casus something which conveys love and commitment. Jesus' words in Markond between a couple, so sex is significant; therefore, many Christian sex before marriage, or at least that long-term sexual relationships she them official. This makes marriage important for Christians as it allow and commitment to their partner through sex.
- Many Christians see marriage as the foundation for a stable society, ar
- Many Christians also think a purpose of marriage is to symbolise the represented by the husband) and his church (represented by the wife because of this; this is indicated in Ephesians 5. Similarriage represented in the relationship of love and authority. Some Christians may not limakes the man seem superior to the partner.





A groom and bride in wedding outfits

Humanists and atheists marriage include having set for one's partner, and provisociety. Alternatively, atheis purposes of marriage; for explicitly being wedding, and getting be regards to children) and tax

Some humanists and atheis
They feel that it is not neces
have children, or to show lo

significant to them for religious reasons, and they may feel that it is expense people no longer wish to be together, and have to go through the complication of the second secon

Impact and Influence

Many people in Britain get married, and many non-religious people also generated that church marriages are special. However, not gett becoming more socially acceptable.

Quick Questions

- 10) Which of these is **not** a description of the nature of marriage for Chris
 - a) Monogamous
 - b) A or suc
 - c) Ai rtant commitment
 - d) Procreation
- 11) Give two purposes which Christians believe marriage has.



Same-sex Marriage and Cohabitation

Controversial issues for Christians include **same-sex marriage** and cohabi disagree with one or both of these; others see no problem with them, and views in between.

Keywords:

- same-sex marriage a legal/spiritual joining of two people of the same se
- **procreation** making/having children
- cohabitation living with a partner unmarried, often in a sexual relationsh

Reasons for Disapproving of Same-s ax Manage

Many Christians disagree with sar we no mosexual) marriage, because they disagree with a resexuality / homosexual relationships above.

re: cc: re:

Sc

re

To reiterate, spart from a disagreement with homosexual relationships for other reasons, including teaching in the Bible, the Catholic Church disagrees with homosexual sex as it cannot produce child sees **procreation** as an important purpose of marriage, they are strongly at this reason.

Even Christians who accept homosexual relationships do not all accept sarbecause they feel that marriage is a special institution for heterosexual (op how it was created by God and described by Jesus. They do not think hun ability to change this.

Some also feel that if Christian **denominations** accept homosexual marriage with homosexual marriage will be forced to perform such marriages challenges.

'But from the beginning of creation, "God made them male and female." "For this his father and mother and be joined to his wife, and the two shall become one flest two, but one flesh. Therefore what God has joined together, let no one separate

Reasons for Accepting Same-sex Marriaga

However, some liberal Christians do accent some liberal Christians do accent some liberal Christians do accent some liberal Christian denomination who will practise same-sex marriage are old-fast Christian denomination who will practise same-sex marriage churches other same-sex couples a blessing if they have a civil wedding (the discretion).

Many **humanists** and **atheists** do not have a problem with same-sex marr section on *Homosexual Relationships*. However, some may feel that marri heterosexual and religious institution, and should not be widened to include



Reasons for Cohabitation

Some **atheists** and **humanists** see no need for **marriage**. They feel that **c** unmarried, often in a sexual relationship – is perfectly acceptable, because decree that people should get married, and people can live together in just making public promises and signing pieces of paper. They feel that cohab a stable society, and provide stability for raising a family.

They may also feel that there is no point to marriage and/or that cohabiting marriage because many couples split up, and having to go through a **divo** and does not help with stability for any children involved.

Most Christians approve of marriage, and ware to a transfer if they meet few may prefer the idea of cohabitation and the marriage in the mass of the reasons of the reasons

Some tolerant Protestants have no problem with cohabiting couples and to it will accept cohabiting couples working towards marriage.

Reasons against Cohabitation

However, some Christians feel that there are valid religious and ethical objections to **cohabitation**:

- The Catholic Church and conservative Christians feel that sex should only take place within **marriage** because of biblical teaching, e.g. Jesus describing marriage as the time when a couple would be joined physically.
- Being comfortable with cohabitation may mean that couples move forward too quickly with a relationship which may then mean they get stuck in an unloving relationship for financial reasons, or have a more difficult break-up.
- Cohabitation and sex before marriage may be a bad idea if children are accidentally conceived in an unstable cohabitating relation

Some atheists and humanists may still think that marries is a good idea, for stability, and because it requires couples to a key commitment to each them happy and help them to lead good idea.



For many y ame-sex unions were not legally provided for, in part due 2004, same-sex couples could get civil partnerships, which are very similar same-sex marriage has been available in England, Scotland and Wales, the

Cohabitation is becoming increasingly popular and increasingly socially accohabitation now affords couples some legal and financial rights, though



COPYRIGHT PROTECTED



Key

Quick Questions

- 12) Which of these is **not** a reason why some Christians disapprove of same
 - Homosexual couples cannot procreate naturally
 - b) The Bible condemns homosexuality
 - Jesus' description of marriage features a man and a woman c)
 - d) Jesus condemned homosexuals
- 13) Give two reasons why religious couples might cohabit.
- 14) Give two reasons why Christians may disagree with cohabitation.







Divorce

As well as teaching about **marriage**, the Bible also teaches about **divorce**, **denominations** teach different positions, while different Christians have d

Keywords:

- ◆ divorce the legal ending of a marriage
- separated where a couple remain married legally, but do not live togethe
- sacrament a particularly important worship practice which has even high such as the Catholic and Orthodox churches
- annulment the cancelling of a marriage, saying it never existed
- ♦ **baptism** a sacrament which involves being around d vith, or immersed in Jesus
- ◆ remarriage where people :: → ** v ** een married before marry other pe the same person aca:

Against Libe and Remarriage

Some Christians have very strict views when it comes to **divorce**. The Cath divorce, and does not acknowledge legal divorce (so they would see a dive but **separated** from their spouse). This is because the Catholic Church see given by God, and Jesus taught that people should not separate what God However, Catholics will allow **annulments** in some circumstances, which sataken place. This is decided by a Catholic marriage tribunal, and reasons for marriage was never consummated (the couple never had sex), one of the pathat (at least) one of the parties was tricked or coerced into marriage. How for **adultery** or desertion (when one partner leaves the other and refuses to

The Catholic Church will not **remarry** people who are divorced because they do not accept the ending of the first marriage, so they view it as adultery: cheating on the person's first spouse. A Catholic would have to get a Catholic annulment and a legal divorce in order to be remarried legally in a Catholic Church. (Catholics will, however, remarry those whose spouses have died.)

Di higher than century, but out (and sor there

"... what God has joined together, let no one separate "... hey said to him, "Vocommand us to give a certificate of dismissal and "... are "ce ser?" He said to the were so hard-hearted that Moses allowed ... to disporce your wives, but from the "... (shatthew 19:6-8 NRSV)

'The Lording is the original intention of the Creator who willed that is He testine accommodations that had slipped into the old Law.' (Cathe



Reasons for Divorce and Remarrying

While some non-Catholic Christians also hold strict views on **divorce**, mos allow divorce in some circumstances. For example, moderate Protestants circumstances, such as:

- if someone's spouse committed **adultery** against them;
- abused them; or
- deserted them.

In these cases, they may feel that the other person broke the **marriage** vo relationship with them is dangerous or practically impossible. Jesus appearase of unfaithfulness.

'... anyone who divorces hi அச்ச இரண் the ground of unchastity, causes her whook நிருவ் divorced woman commits adultery.' (Matthew 5

Moderate Prestants also believe that God forgives sins and mistakes, and divorce, but will allow **remarriage** in church for those who have had good above) for divorce. All churches will remarry someone if their spouse has

'... for this is my blood of the covenant, which is poured out for many for the forg 26:28 NRSV)

Remarriage is up to the individual vicar or minister, and some may not marry those they feel abused a marriage; did not try sufficiently hard to save a marriage, or have had more than one failed marriage.

More liberal Christians, such as liberal Protestants, allow divorce for many reasons, such as if a couple decide that they are no longer in love. Some such **denominations** are happy to marry all those who have previously been divorced, if they believe they are genuinely making t may remarry people who have abused previous marriages if they believe t for their mistakes), and may choose to remarry those who have had severa they believe people always deserve another chance, and lesus taught that forgive.

'Then Peter came and so with a sord, if another member of the church sins should I for vive? As seven times?" Jesus said to him, "Not seven times, seven times." (Matthew 18:21-22 NRSV)

Reasons for remarriage may include:

- A divorced person falls in love again.
- A divorced person desires to have a fulfilling sexual relationship an they should marry their new partner in order for this to happen.
- Marrying a new partner may provide security for existing children.



Not all Christians have the same perspectives on marriage, as this can be a Catholics may have more liberal views on divorce than the Catholic Church think that their churches are too lenient with accepting divorces and allow opinions on divorce may change depending on their circumstances, and so that people should break their marriage promises to God and their partner themselves if they feel that their marriage has failed.

Non-religious people may feel that getting a divorce in any circumstances is longer wish to remain married, as they may see no reason to stick to such a unhappy. Without marriage being a commitment to God/gods, there are no

Non-religious people may also have no problem virtualivorced people rennew promises.

This does not mean the first in an inhappy couple are casual about divorce unlikely to the an unhappy couple stay married.

Impact and Influence

Divorce is becoming more socially acceptable, and most people can obtain also legal, and there is no legal limit on the number of times someone can

Quick Questions

- 15) Which of these is **not** a reason which people might give for getting a
 - a) Saving money
- b) Unhappiness
- c) Desertion
- 16) Which of these does the Catholic Church sometimes grant *instead* of
 - a) Remarriage
- b) Adultery
- c) Annulment
- 17) Give two reasons why some Christians will allow remarriage.



Ethical Arguments Related to Divorce

There are various ethical arguments – arguments about what is right and wrong in particular situations – related to divorce.

Keywords:

- sanctity holy, of spiritual importance
- compassion showing care for others

Sanctity of Marriage Vows

Catholics, and some other Christians, argue that marriage vows are sacred; because they are a promise to God. they are oly. Because of the **sanctity** of marriage vows unit constitutes may feel that it is unethical to break the seen as a **sin** to break something holy, something and does not want broken.

Therefore, the stians may feel divorce should not be allowed, because for the coulouse of the coulous work by human standards, it would be wrong in the eye.

Commitment

Christians might also argue that divorce is not only a promise to God, but also a promise to one's spouse, and allowing divorce at all, or allowing divorce for any old reason, makes people take commitment too casually, and creates an unstable society.

ac twer ta

However, while these may be reasons for taking marriage seriously, and no a relationship has broken down, those involved are likely to want the chan

Practical

Both religious and non-religious people may feel that there are negative subreaking promises to God and/or one's spouse. People who get divorced off, and may find it hard to afford living costs on their own. Children of disbreak-up emotionally tough.

However, some people may feel that unhappy parents divorcing will be belong run, as unhappy parents will also have a negative emotional impact of

Compassion

Many Christians allow divorce because they feel that it is the most loving to should treat others as they would wish to be treated they feel it is **compa** have a second chance, because they believe the scale alloving God, who and does not want them to suffer for the sale.

'In everything do to to you; for this is the la (Matthew 7:12 NRSV) [The Golden Rule]

Humanists are also likely to feel that allowing divorce is comp be allowed, because it is unfair to make people stay married if they do not

Quick Questions

- 18) Give two arguments *against* allowing divorce.
- 19) Which of these is an ethical argument *for* allowing divorce?
 - a) Sanctity of Marriage Vows

b) Commitment

c) Remarriage

d) Compassion



Summary for Sex, Marriage and Divorce

- Human sexuality is not uniform; people experience different sexual d different sexes/genders. Heterosexuality is approved of by Christians, of homosexual relationships. Some object on biblical grounds, while judge others, and accept homosexual relationships.
- ◆ Different Christians have different attitudes to sexual relationships. So relationships should take place within **marriage**, while others feel that acceptable. Most Christians disapprove of **adultery / extramarital se** likely to have a more relaxed attitude to consensual sexual relationship should take place within a committed relationship d/or that adulter to the spouse who is cheated on.
- Different Christians have different and es to contraception and family not use any artificial contraception of the contraception of the Catholic encycles. If the contraception is a change to be portunity for procreation the Catholic encycles. If the contraception is a change that they could cause a miscarriage. The contraception is a change that they could cause a miscarriage.
- ◆ Marriage is important within Christianity. It is seen to be an important commitment and, in some denominations, a sacrament. It is viewed as gift from God, and some see it as the foundation for a stable society. Christian marriage is monogamous and generally heterosexual. It is entered into for purposes such as procreation, expressing love within couple, having sex and because Christians believe that God intended humans to marry. Non-religious people may also see marriage as important, though they will not view it as a spiritual commitment.
- ◆ Same-sex marriage is controversial in Christianity, for many of the sareasons that homosexual relationships are controversial in general. Naccept cohabitation, and may even favour it over marriage. Some Cohabitation, but others accept it as a step towards marriage, or have
- There are also different Christian positions on **divorce** and **remarriage**. allow divorce, but will allow an **annulment** in some circumstances. They divorced, but may remarry those whose partners have died, or those who Other Christians may allow divorce in limited circumstances, such as in tappeared to allow for divorce in this instance. Some are much more lenserer reasons. Churches which allow divorce may close to allow divorce example, if they fall in love again, want to have a simulated relationship for their children. Non-religious pare axely to be more relaxed ab
- Ethical arguments again the modude that divorce breaks marria (which is a sin and of Gal); that allowing divorce may make people that all the process make families financially and emotionally unstable divorce mpassion that it is kinder to allow people a new start.

Now Try This...

20) 'All sexual relationships outside of heterosexual marriage are wrong.' statement.

Argue for **and** against this statement. You must give religious arguments religious arguments. Reach a conclusion which follows from your arguments



Families and Gender Equal

Families can be very different from each other in the twenty-first century, a families may differ from non-religious ones. There are also different views women, and on **gender equality, prejudice** and **discrimination**.

Keywords:

- ◆ role a part or job carried out
- equality not necessarily being the same, but being treated with the same level of authority
- **prejudice** a biased belief about someone or a group of people
- **discrimination** treating someone differently, it is airly because of prejudi
 - → gender equality, equality between the women is an important iss
 - → gender prejudice and care in the immination are prejudice and discrimants of the immination are prejudiced and discrimants of the immination are prejudic

The Nav Part Families

There are various beliefs about the nature of families, and there are many Some people feel that families make up the basis for a stable society. Some human family reflects the family of God; the family of all Christians through

The Role of Parents and Children

Parents and children have different **roles** in the family.

Parents look after their children, caring for them and teaching them. This can include providing stability, protecting their children, and educating them, sometimes including raising them in a **faith** (see the section on *The Purpose of Families* below). Having brought their children into the world it can be argued that they have more responsibility to their children than their children do to them (children do not choose to be born).



Children obey their parents and learn from them. Christianity stresses the Children may also look after their parents in their old age. The Greek philochildren do have an obligation to their parents because heir parents raises

'Children, obey your parent the sero, for this is right. "Honour your father are first commandmen' to be preartise: "so that it may be well with you and you may (Ephesians 6:1–3 NRSV)



Different Types of Family

In the twenty-first century there are many different types of family. There cultures and family circumstances, and also because of changes in society. *nuclear* families and *extended* families in particular.

Type of Family	Description		Possible
Nuclear	A family unit where two parents (traditionally heterosexual) live with their biological children or adopted children. Some think of this as the traditional family.	•	Most Christian family. Some Christia couple having unmarried.
Single- parent	A family unit where it so parent looks after the hill our children. This is a varietie in the nuclear family (with e it as parent). This can be due to the ath of one parent, the end of a relationship between parents, or (in recent times) where a woman has become pregnant with donated sperm or a single person has adopted a child.	•	Christians may taking on all to parenting white Some Christian families if they breakdown, on thild, if they feentitled to two and that peop they cannot p
Blended	A family unit where at least one member of the couple has children from a previous relationship. The children, therefore, live with one parent and one step-parent, and any children of the new couple live with their half-sibling(s). This is a variation on the nuclear family (as children live with two adults, but one is not their parent / not the parent of all children in the family).	•	Christians mas a new family to left them, beconsecurity for the Some Christia leaving the pa forming new to
Extended	A family unit where extra members of the family live with parents and their children; for example, grandparents or aunts, uncles and cousins.	•	Christians ma living togethe Christians ma members are family's hospi

Impact and Influence

With people living longer, there has have crossing demand for children parents. Some do this by taking to spicial to their homes, or living close by Others may pay for the same above after in a nursing home.

An increasing eptance of casual sex and the widespread acceptance of led to a divergence in the types of family which exist in twenty-first century

Quick Questions

- 21) Which one of these is **not** a type of family?
 - a) Extended
- b) Doubled
- c) Nuclear
- 22) Give two roles of children in a family.



The Purpose of Families

There are various beliefs about the purpose of families.

Keywords:

- procreation making/having children
- faith belief and trust in something, here in Jesus and God
- morality ideas about what is right and wrong
- baptism a sacrament which involves being anointed with or immersed in Jesus
- sacrament a particularly important worship practice which has even high such as the Catholic and Orthodox churches

Procreation

Many Christians feet the should have a family because God told hum children in the sis sinerefore, the purpose of having a family is to fulfil Go and having a family is important because the family is part of God's plan for

'Be fruitful and multiply, and fill the earth...' (Genesis 1:28 NI

As seen above, some Christians, such as Catholics, feel that all sexual acts spossibility of procreation. Some Christians take this even further – Christian do not use any forms of **contraception** or family planning (including naturally that method), as they believe all children are a blessing from God. They anything to stand in the way of God giving them children, and often have very

Some people, including Christians, believe in **marriage**, but do not feel the have a family. So not all married Christians feel called to procreation.

Additionally, some couples cannot have children even if they want to due conceive) in either or both members of the couple. They may accept remafertility treatment, adoption or fostering. Those who adopt or foster a children, just not through procreation. Note: while the all sexual acts *should* be open to the possibility of procreation, it also acceptified through no fault of their own. It does not condemn such couples, they are infertile, and encourages infertile married to have a sexual teaching does not allow fertility treatment of a T.F. but encourages additionally.

Stability and Protection of Children

Many peor purpose of a family is to provide stability and p grow up in any and safe environment – parents should care for, and lo religious and some non-religious people feel that **marriage** provides the sfamily for children, as this shows the commitment of a couple to stay toge disrupting their children's family unit. Others will disagree, and feel that a married to provide stability for children. They may also feel that different parent families, or separated parents who share custody of their children, safe environment for their children.



Educating Children in a Faith

Christians may also feel that part of the purpose of a family unit is to raise children in the Christian faith; the Catholic Church makes the couples it **marries** promise to raise their children in the Catholic faith. The family is, therefore, important as a place for learning about God and Christianity. Most Christians also feel that it is their responsibility to educate their children in other respects and many non-religious people also see the family as important in the moral education and general education of children, but without the focus on religious education.

Many Christian families get their children **baptised**, to that they are making a commitment to raising them as a Chistich and educating them in the **faith**. Baptism also symbolises and the family of God. As an alternative, they may dedicate feir stallu(ren) to God, holding a service similar to bantism, to we but the sacrament taking place, so the 🋂 🔾 baptism themselves when older, if they wish. child(ren) d

'And, fathers, do not provoke your children to anger, but bring them up in the disc the Lord.' (Ephesians 6:4 NRSV)

Other Purposes of Families

- People may feel that it is a personal choice to have children, and that fulfilling the desire of parents to have children.
- Some people feel that a purpose of having a family is so that you have your old age, and that families are important for this reason. Others f to have a family, but they may agree that families are important because often support each other.

Quick Questions

- 23) Give two reasons why Christian parents may get their children baptise
- 24) Which of these is **not** a purpose of the family for Christians?
 - a) Procreation
 - b) Being baptised
 - c) Stability and protection of children
 - d) Educating children in the faith





Contemporary Family Issues

There are many different contemporary family issues for different types of

Keywords:

- same-sex parents parents of the same children who are both of the sam
- surrogacy where a woman is pregnant with a child for another person/comay not be biologically related to her.
- **polygamy** the practice of having multiple spouses

Same-sex Parents

Type of Family	Description	Possible Ch
Same-sex Parents	A family the same sex/gender. The present the me same sex/gender. The present the me same sex/gender. The present the same sex/gender. The	Some Christians are wish to provide a lov Christians who disapple disapprove of homos children together be homosexual relations children. Equally, so should have example
	a donor egg.	upbringing.

Same-sex parents may face issues around actually having children – they cannot **procreate** naturally. Same-sex adoption is legal in the UK, but has not always been. There are also regulations surrounding other ways to have children, such as **surrogacy**. In the UK it is illegal to pay surrogates more than fair expenses to have a baby, and the surrogate has rights as the child's mother until she signs an agreement after birth; there is nothing to stop her choosing to keep the child.

Same-sex parents may also have issues being accepted. Religious people may disapprove, and families traditionally have parents of both sexes/genders, so same-sex parents are a relatively new concept for society. However, acceptance is growing for same-sex parents. Celebrities such as Elton John have raised the profile of same-sex parenthood.

Further down the line, the children in the sex parents (and indeed any adochildren) may wish to make a more involved parents, which may be hard for the

Polygamy

Polygamy is **marrying** more than one person. Polygamy is not legal in the recognise some polygamous marriages performed elsewhere. Christians gethough it is not forbidden in the Bible; the Church has traditionally taught between two people and God. There are different approaches to polygam cultures, e.g. some interpret the Qur'an as allowing Muslim men to marry the Muslim holy book, which the majority of Muslims believe to be the lite revealed through the Prophet Muhammad.



There are different types of polygamy, e.g. **polyandry** is where one woman **polygyny** is where one man marries multiple women; and in **group marria** men and women, either all married to each other, or married to different contact the group.

Negative family issues from polygamy:

- Polygamy can result in jealously of spouses, if they feel left out and ur
- Children may see their parents less if one of their parents has several more people in the family (spouses and children), and so less quality
- If polygamous relationships break up, children may face separation from parent figures.
- Polygamous families may have fewer leggary 5t cions in some instant
 - a second or third spouse me ave legal rights if a spouse die that the union is now legal velocognised)
 - a non-biology of jalent in a group marriage scenario may not have we helped to raise

Positives for polygamous families:

- Polygamy may mean that children have the support of more parent fi
- Families with multiple wives can increase the number of children in a families with multiple husbands can decrease the number of child this is desired (while still providing loving and stable relationships).

Other Contemporary Family Issues

- Single-parent families mean that some children grow up with only one parent. In the majority of single-parent families, this does not affect the child negatively. However, there may be issues with single-parent families; for example, if the child still sees their other parent, there may be disputes about custody.
- In blended families, there can be issues between step-parents, and stepchildren, and it can prove difficult if they do not get along.
- In the twenty-first century it is extremely common for both parents in parent in a single-parent family to work, meaning that they have to just commitments.

Quick Questions

- 25) Which of these is the term for marrying mover than one person?
 - a) Polygamy
- b) / t¹ er
- c) Procreation

26) Give two was same-sex parents may face.



The Roles of Men and Women

Some Christians see different **roles** for men and women in the family, and

Keywords:

- ◆ role a part or job carried out
- equality not necessarily being the same, but being treated with the same level of authority
- ordained the word used to describe someone who is a member of the cle
 who has had training and has authority to perform services and administer
- apostles Jesus' disciples after his death, who spread Christianity
- apostolic succession the belief that priests in certain denominations can Jesus and his disciples and that this is important.

The Roles of Men and Wanes in the Family

Many Christian attitude of the roles of men and women in the family are For example is ther to the Ephesians, St Paul writes that husbands are the same with Jesus is the head of the Church. This indicates to some subordinate to, or inferior, less important, than men, and are under their a charge of their wives, then the husband's role in the family is to lead, and the Note: St Paul's teaching does not suggest that husbands can abuse their place their wives as they love themselves.

'Wives, be subject to your husbands as you are to the Lord. For the husband is the Christ is the head of the church, the body of which he is the Saviour. Just as the chaso also wives ought to be, in everything, to their husbands... Each of you, however as himself, and a wife should respect her husband.' (Ephesians 5:22-2-4)

Some Christians also justify different roles for men and women by using Geneman was made before woman, this shows men to be more important, and as for man, wives should serve their husbands. The woman also tempts her husb forbidden fruit, and some use this as an indicator that husbands should not for

'Then the Lord God said, "It is not good that the man should be alone; I will ma partner." (Genesis 2:18 NRSV)

Important women in the Bible are often important as wives and mothers; Mary is important to Christians because of her role as it is mother. This may lead some Christians to feel that it is important to be wives and mothers, and see this as the responsibility.

However, some other times have argued that men and women should no discrent roles in the family. They may disregard the teaching of the discrent roles in the family. They may disregard the teaching of the discrent roles in the family. They may disregard the small group of Christians; not intended to teach Christians several thousand years in future. Equally, they may claim that St Paul was just a human and humans make mistakes; what he believed may not have been what God wants for the family. Indeed, there is no record in the gospels of Jesus claiming that women should have different roles from men in the family. In Luke 10:38–42 Jesus encourages a woman called Marteaching rather than helping her sister Martha with the traditional female relationship.



'But Martha was distracted by her many tasks; so she came to him and asked, "Lo my sister has left me to do all the work by myself? Tell her then to help me." But the "Martha, Martha, you are worried and distracted by many things; there is need to has chosen the better part, which will not be taken away from her." (Luke

Furthermore, it can be argued that the word for 'helper' in Genesis 2 is also used on several occasions in the Old Testament to describe God, and, therefore, if a wife is her husband's helper, this in no way makes her less important than him; it would actually indicate that the role of helper is more important.

Re Ephesia to get t

Christians who think that men and my should have different roles in the from wives, and fathers different roles in the from wives, and fathers differences between men and women show that the perform differences. However, those who disagree argue that science at there are no any psychological differences between men and women withat any differences between men and women can be explained environmental prepare them differently, expecting them to perform different roles.

Many modern **humanists** and **atheists** may see no reason for different roll family; they see them as **equal**.

Some atheists may believe there should be gender roles within a relations grown up in a male-led society, but this is not because they think God/god different roles.

Other Roles of Men and Women

Other than having different roles in the family, some Christians feel that wome other roles men can, and should not be **ordained** as priests, e.g. conservative and the Catholic Church. This is partly due to the teaching of St Paul in the New due to the fact that Jesus and his 12 disciples were male. The Catholic Church traditional – that Catholic priests can trace themselves back to the original **ap**

'I permit no woman to teach or to have authority over a man...' (1 Timot)

'... women should be silent in the churches. For the almost permitted to specific subordinate, as the law also say 'al Corinthians 14:34 NRS'

However, other Christians for hothers is unfair, and that women should be roles as men including ordained. They argue that St Paul's teaching community to susping of years ago, and is no longer relevant, and that the were female stless and leaders in the Early Church (see Romans 16).

Quick Questions

- 27) Give two reasons why some Christians feel that men and women should in the family.
- 28) Which of these is a role which a Catholic woman cannot perform?
 - a) Wife
- b) Mother
- c) Priest



Gender Equality

There are different opinions about **gender equality** within Christianity and

Keywords:

equality – not necessarily being the same, but being treated with the same level of authority

Those who do *not* support different **roles** for men and women in the famili **ordination**, may feel that giving them roles based on gender does not show genders. While equality does not necessarily mean threated the same same respect, many feel that if women are seen saidlerior to men, or mad not allowed to be priests, they are to be treated with the same respect



An image of Mary, Jesus' mother, with Jesus

A counterargument is that those who tr differently within Christianity claim that equal. Therefore, if men and women ar different treatment and different roles @ They argue that God created male and different purposes, and if humans treat this, they cannot be treating women un For example, they feel that Mary, the m regarded, especially in the Catholic and way seen as unequal to men though sh

However, Christians who feel that givin@ roles makes them unequal, and who be should be treated equally, claim that gi roles is not in the spirit of Christianity. teachings of the Bible are about love, a

women equally, and that they have equal roles in the family and elsewhere men and women equally, and if he sees them as no different (Galatians 3:2 treat them differently either. In Genesis 1 there is no mention of man beir of them both being created at the same time in the image of God. This do different roles, but that they are both equal. The Bible shows that Jesus ha spoke to women and treated them kindly, such as the Samaritan woman in in Mark 7, who other Jews would not have had contain with.

'So God created humar': "In 'a mage, in the image of God he created them created them.' (Genesis 1:27 NRSV)

longer male and female; for all of you are one in Christ Jesus' (C

Christians have also argued that biblical teaching must be understood in t written, and what may have been good teaching at the time, about wives speaking in church, etc. in a male-dominated society, is out of date in the longer relevant.



Some Christians and **atheists/humanists** who think men and women should society, and not have different roles, may still accept that men and women roles in the upbringing of small children. There are certain roles which different roles are certain roles which different roles in the upbringing of small children. There are certain roles which different example, men cannot breast-feed, and women can. However, they may how the couple divide up parenting responsibilities and an individual's characteristics. For example, if parents are trying to take equal responsibility, the his fair share of looking after his child, as well as the mother, even if not all divided equally.

Gender equality is in many ways a relatively modern concept, which has dehundred years. It was not until the twentieth century the women began to men, such as being able to vote – women such as the end the suffragette this. The First and Second World Was a libered to calls for female equaling significant parts in contribution to the war effort and maintaining the cource Christian groups, such as pecome more gender-equal in line with modern social three process.

Quick Questions

- 29) Give two reasons why Christians feel that men and women are equal.
- 30) Which of these quotes tells of God creating men and women in his im
 - a) Genesis 1:27
- b) Galatians 3:28
- c) Ephesians 5:22





Gender Prejudice and Discrimination

Gender prejudice is where someone thinks that women or men cannot or or are different in an inferior way because of their gender. **Gender discrim** prejudice is put into practice, and someone treats someone differently becaulowing them to do certain things, or making them do certain things. Those gender often see women as inferior to men, and gender discrimination is owomen; however, it can also disadvantage men. Gender prejudice and discrimination is owomen;

Keywords:

- prejudice a biased belief about someone or a grown if people
- **discrimination** treating someone differer as remainly because of prejudi

Opposition to Gender and Discrimination

As seen about the striams believe that Jesus treated women well, and for men are pen; he died to save everyone. Moreover, some early Chronot view men and women differently, and many Christians believe this tod prejudice and discrimination on the basis of gender are wrong.

'... there is no longer male and female; for all of you are one in Christ Jesus' (C

Examples of Christian opposition to **gender prejudice and discrimination** include the Christian **denomination** the Quakers,
who aim to treat men and women equally. They have allowed
women to speak at Quaker meetings from the beginnings of the
movement (in the 1600s), giving them equal status during worship.

Several other denominations have also allowed women to become vicars and bishops in recent years, allowing women to perform the same **roles** as men on an equal footing – not believing they should not, or preventing them, because of their gender. In the Church of England, women have been able to become priests since 1993, and bishops since 2014.

Christians have also worked against gender prejudice and discrimination in other areas outside of the christians have worked to help the (female) victime do stic abuse by supporting refuges. They have and a stop women being trafficked (moved) arc and world as sex slaves, either by donating to existing the less working with charities; some Christian charities we lend inequality against women. Some Christians have also issues relating to discrimination against women. This is becoming more contact women have political rights. A contemporary issue which Christian worthe Tampon Tax – whether women should have to pay taxes on necessary satisfactors.

Most **humanists** will think that it is wrong to have **prejudice**, or to **discrin** because humanism promotes **equality**. They will have views similar to liberatheists will also agree.



Examples of Gender Prejudice and Discrimination

However, it can also be argued that some Christians are **prejudiced** based on **gender**, and **discriminate** based on **gender**. It can be argued that this is done by Christians who think there should be, and implement, different gender **roles** in the family; and by Christian **denominations** who will not allow women to perform certain roles, such as becoming a priest in the Catholic Church (see the sections on *The Roles of Men and Women* and *Gender Equality*).

t i I s

Such Christians and denominations claim that the Bible provides reason for different roles; for example, Jesus' closest 12 disciple of eall men, and so against women becoming priests, because this is the extern set by God. However, they believe this is the firstly God.

Christians (1) believe that there are valid reasons for discriminating agare unlikely to able to convince non-religious people of their points of what they believe God wants, and some of the ways they discriminate are biological differences which (may) exist between women and men.

However, some atheists in societies which have been traditionally male-led women and discriminate against them for social or cultural reasons. There discrimination in everyday British society today, e.g. women are paid, on as

Other examples of gender discrimination include being refused jobs, expegiven different legal rights (including child custody arrangements, or access While these *should* not occur in the UK, there are still countries where they countries such as Iran, women must wear headscarves in public.

Debate

Some non-religious people and Christians will argue that **gender prejudic** wrong; however, there are some biological differences between men and prejudiced to believe, for example, that men are generally stronger than w something heavy, for example, because of this.

Others (Christians and non-religious people) will note that while there may women and men, people should try to avoid making lifted, there may be a generalisations (for example, if you want and lifted, there may be a than the men present), in order to provide an **equal** society.

Quick Qu

- 31) Which or these is an example of gender discrimination?
 - a) Giving both genders equal education
 - b) Men beating women in a race
 - c) Hiring a woman because she is the better candidate for a job
 - d) Not letting women be priests
- 32) Give two ways that Christians have opposed gender prejudice and dis



Summary for Families and Gender Equality

- Christians may feel that families provide a foundation for a stable society and reflect the family of God. They may feel that parents and children have different roles; parents raising their children, and children obeying their parents. There are many different types of families, such as nuclear families (parents with their children) and extended families (where there are additional relatives living with a nuclear family).
- Many Christians feel that the purposes of its illinctude procreation, stability and ction of children, and educating stages are the faith.
- Contemporary facility ssizes include same-sex parents and polygamy issues the polygam and being accepted in society, among others. In spoural alousy, less time with parents for children, and fewer legal among other issues.
- ◆ Some Christians believe that men and women should have different **role** due to passages in Ephesians and at the start of Genesis. They may also should have different roles in other respects, e.g. women should not be that such biblical teaching is outdated, and that it is not loving to give n
- Christians who feel men and women should have different roles may
 equal before God. Other Christians believe that giving men and wom
 them unequally, but that the Bible teaches that men and women are
 matter, so humans should not treat them differently.
- ◆ Different Christians have different positions on **gender prejudice and**Christians believe these are wrong, and many **denominations** allow not the same **roles**. Christians have also campaigned for and worked towerd of prejudice and discrimination. However, other Christians do dissome ways, because they believe they should *not* carry out all the same people, especially **humanists**, are likely to oppose gender prejudice a non-religious people may still be prejudiced or discriminate because **(a)**





Answers

Remember!

Always check the exam board website for new information, including changes to assessment material.

Sex, Marriage and Divorce

Question Number	Answer/Mark Scheme
1	c) Tensexuality
2	They believe God instituted them when the second shumanity. Jesus spoke in favour of them Jesus spoke in favour of them
	Accept any correct point, 1 /nt (maximum 2)
3	 Christianity: Christian be that they do not need to follow all of the Jewish law beavising from sin, so some feel that prohibitions of homosexuality and that homosexual relationships are fine. Christians believe that love is the most important thing, because of teac Golden Rule, and so some accept homosexual relationships to be loving. Jesus taught people not to judge others, so some Christians may not jurelationships negatively because of this. Homosexuality is forbidden in the Bible, e.g. in Leviticus, and in teaching immorality, so some Christians feel that homosexual relationships are wrong because cannot procreate naturally, and this is the purpose of sexual relationship told humans to multiply.
	Islam: Homosexual relationships are wrong because they are unnatural and go Allah. Homosexual activity is forbidden in the Qur'an and other Islamic teaching punishable by death, so homosexual relationships are wrong.
	 Judaism: Some Jews accept homosexual relationships, as they feel they do not ne prohibitions against homosexuality in the Bible. Some feel that those prohibitions no longer apply because they were ne loving homosexual relationships, which are acceptable.
	Any additional religions should be accepted. Accept any relevant point 1 mark per simple point, 2 marks per developed priminaximum 4) If only Christianity OR only another religion in the sone of the two beliefs contrasting, maximum 2 marks
4	The Ten Command of Standultery. Jesus said the standard was where sexual union occurred. Additional flowing and likely to hurt one's spouse. a. sorrect point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)
5	dultery
6	 Christianity: Jesus taught that a physical union of men and women occurred within rechristians believe that having sex before marriage would be wrong. Christians may feel that sexual relationships before marriage are a bad is could lead to children being born in an unstable relationship. Some Christians believe that sexual relationships before marriage are as are a step towards marriage; the Church of England accepts such relationships before marriage. Some Christians feel that any consensual sexual relationships before marriage. Some Christians feel that sexual relationships are a personal deceptable, as they may feel that sexual relationships are a personal deceptable.



Question	A
Number	Answer/Mark Scheme
	Islam:
	Sex before marriage is generally disapproved of as it is forbidden in the second control of the second co
	to be against the will of Allah.
	Muslims believe that sex is something special for married couples and
	make sure that children are born within marriage.
	Judaism:
	Orthodox Jews will generally not have sex before marriage because th
	reserved for marriage from biblical teachings such as Genesis 2:24.
	Orthodox Jews may go as far as to avoid other contact, such as kissing
	prior to marriage.
	Any additional religions should be accepted
	Accept any relevant point
	1 mark per simple it, 2 n rks per developed point (maximum 4)
	If only Christian Actionly another religion is mentioned OR the two belief
4	no ras a raximum 2 marks
7	Condoms
8	There is no teaching against contraception in the Bible.
	They might want to have fewer children so they can look after them b
	They might want to choose when to have children.
	Accept any relevant point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)
9	Against:
	The Catholic Church teaches against contraception because they belie
	sex so that humans could reproduce.
	'Be fruitful and multiply, and fill the earth' (Genesis 1:28 NRSV)
	The Catholic Church teaches against contraception because it feels that
	Law, because preventing conception during sex is not natural.
	Some Christians disagree with some hormonal methods of contracept
	may cause miscarriages, and this may be seen as murder, which is forb
	Commandments.
	You shall not murder' (Exodus 20:13 NRSV) [from the Ten Commandn
	For:
	Catholics allow the rhythm method of contraception, because it still al
	possibility of conception.
	Many Christians accept the use of contraception because there is noth
	forbidding it; they may want to plan the number of timing of their chil
	improve the health of women
	Accept any relevant points and reference to scripture
	1 mark per simple point, 2 marks per developed point (maximum 4), 1 mark
	reference to scripture.
	If only one religious belief is mentioned, maximum irks + 1 mark for scrip
10	d) Procreation
11	Procreation
	To have a sexual
	To show the love and support
	pt ept en point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)
12	12. Je. 33 condemned homosexuals
	Jesus said nothing about homosexuality and did not condemn homo
13	They want to check that their relationship is strong before getting ma
	They want to live together, but save money before paying for a weddi
	They feel that love is the most important thing.
	Accept any relevant point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)
14	They may feel that sex should only take place within marriage.
	They may feel that accepting cohabitation can lead to people becoming the property of the
	soon, which can lead to messy break-ups.
	They may feel that if people have children while cohabiting, this is not
	a family as marriage.
	1



Question	Answer/Mar	k Scheme
Number	•	
4.5	Accept any relevant point, 1 mark per point (maxi	mum 2)
15	a) Saving money	
16	c) Annulment	
17	Christians will allow remarriage if someone's	
	Christians may allow remarriage because the	
	making mistakes, and give them another cha	
	Christians may feel that it is compassionate others as they would like to be treated, and	
	death of a spouse if they were in that position	
	Accept any relevant point, 1 mark per point (maxi	8
18	Marriage vows are sacred, and it is a sin to be	
_0	• If divorce is allowed then people wil' ஊக் டி	
	knowing they can divorce the action	
	Accept any relevant point (maxi	
19	d) Compassion	
20	arg t justification	
	the arguments for and against, with justifica	tion
	OR Several linked, justified arguments for one po	sition
	Good, well-justified arguments for and against, lir	nked together
	Manager Handard Mall Cod Cod and an arrange for a second	al and Sant Palend to a other
	Very well argued. Well-justified arguments for an	id against, iinked together a
	leading to a reasonable conclusion Points and Justification for:	Points and Justification as
	God instituted marriage for heterosexual	If you do not believe
	couples to have sex within.	there is no reason n
	Jesus implied that sex should take place	outside of marriage
	within heterosexual marriage.	homosexual sex.
	The Catholic Church believes that all sex	Jesus never said any
	should be open to the possibility of	against homosexua
	procreation and homosexual sex is not;	premarital sex.
	and it may not be a good idea to have	Teaching against ho
	children outside of marriage, as this is a	Bible is outdated.
	less stable environment for them.	Jesus taught to trea
	The Bible teaches against sexual	would like to be tre
	immorality, and sexual relationships	others, and saying t
	outside of heterosexual marriage may be	relationships are wr
	believed to be sexually immoral.	others well / loving
		Jesus taught not to
		is wrong to make su
		If couples have sex is
		married, this may he if they want to be to
		before getting marr
		perore getting man

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED



people can take masseriously / may be less

ant point or justification – other religions should be accepte

Families and Gender Equality

Question	Answer/Mark Scheme		
Number	All Swelf Mark Scheme		
21	b) Doubled		
22	To obey parents		
	To learn from parents		
	Accept any correct point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)		
23	To introduce them to the family of Christianity.		
	To make a commitment to raise them in the Christian faith.		
	Accept any correct point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)		
24	b) Being baptised		
	Note: This may take place as part of educating a childing the Christian faith		
25	a) Polygamy		
26	They cannot procreate naturality		
	• They may not be acc ந்ரி of society, especially the religious.		
	Accept any correct this bark per point (maximum 2)		
27	• The ?: "class that women should obey their husbands, and that w		
	as eper for man.		
;	ve tempted Adam, and some Christians feel this means that women s		
	men.		
	• Women in the Bible are often important as wives and mothers, e.g. Ma		
	Jesus.		
	Accept any correct point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)		
28	c) Priest		
29	The Bible teaches that both men and women were created in the imag		
	gender does not matter within Christianity.		
	The Bible teaches love, and many Christians feel that God would not be		
	treated people unequally.		
	Accept any correct point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)		
30	a) Genesis 1:27		
31	d) Not letting women be priests		
32	Denominations such as the Quakers have always treated women equal		
	denominations such as the Church of England now allow female vicars		
	They have campaigned against gender prejudice and discrimination, e.		
	Tampon Tax.		
	They have given money to charities which help disadvantaged women.		
	Accept any correct point, 1 mark per point (maximum 2)		



